
 

 

  
 

CITY OF OAKLAND          MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  May 20, 2021 
TO:    City Council, Commissioners and Members of the Public 

FROM:   Council President Nikki Fortunato Bas, District 2 

SUBJECT: Special Joint Meeting of City Council’s Life Enrichment Committee 
(LEC), Parks & Recreation Advisory Commission (PRAC) and Cultural 
Affairs Commission  

 
 
Dear City Council Colleagues, Commissioners and Members of the Public, 
 
While Oakland has a thriving culture of celebration, festivals and special events, 
entrepreneurship, activism and recreation, our City has been challenged when expectations 
about how to use shared public spaces have not been agreed upon or addressed, and processes 
to use these spaces are confusing or cumbersome.  
 
Lake Merritt and all our public spaces should be utilized in equitable, inclusive, safe and 
healthy ways. The Lake, which is a hub for Oaklanders and visitors alike, has faced serious 
maintenance, public safety and quality of life challenges, including large crowds during 
COVID, illegal parking  and traffic congestion, impacting public safety access, neighbors and a 
range of park users. Solutions to these challenges are requiring significant staff resources and 
time across multiple departments.  
 
To better address these challenges the City needs to improve coordination across agencies and 
departments and to develop community agreements and programming citywide, that balance 
the needs and priorities of the many people and organizations who use our public spaces.  
  
As the County/City re-open from the pandemic, we must be proactive in programming a 
range of activities in our outdoor public parks and spaces. We can advance this work by 
hearing from the community about the events they would like to host and attend, streamlining 
our permitting processes, and creating community agreements for our public spaces.  
 
During this meeting, we will:  
 

1. Hear an oral report on the City’s Events Permitting Processes, as well as 
frameworks for community agreements and ways to implement agreements such 
as through a pilot ambassadors program 

2. Discuss (1) improving the permitting process to support more programming at 
parks and public spaces citywide and (2) developing community agreements for 
public spaces and ways to implement them 
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More specifically, I hope to:  
 

3. Review and discuss event permitting processes — Report on existing permitting 
processes for events at parks and public spaces and Oakland’s special events ordinance, 
where OPRYD, OPD, CAO, EWD, DOT all play various roles, in an effort to answer; 

a. What are these processes and are they working? 
b. What are the events and activities we would like to see across the city? 
c. Can we streamline permitting to simplify and expedite the process and address 

any barriers?  
d. Can we promote parks and other city spaces in each district for events?  
e. Can we ensure safety without relying on police resources via private security 

hired by event organizers, pilot parks ambassadors/event monitors, and so forth?  
4. Review and discuss community agreements  — Share existing agreements and 

frameworks, including PRAC’s JEDI Principles (Justice, Equity, Diversity and 
Inclusion), and other ideas to guide our efforts. Report on work by the City to develop 
ambassador or other models to implement such agreements and reduce reliance on 
police resources. This includes work by OPRYD on parks ambassadors and event 
monitors and Department of Violence Prevention on creating an ambassadors model.  

 
For questions regarding this memo, please contact Lia Azul Salaverry, Policy Analyst and 
Community Liaison, Office of Council President Nikki Fortunato Bas, at 
lsalaverry@oaklandca.gov. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 
  
Nikki Fortunato Bas      
Council President, District 2  
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Special Events Web Page 
2. Special Events Resolution 
3. PRAC’s Environmental JEDI Principles (Justice, Equity, Diversity and Inclusion) 
4. OPRYD’s Rental Policies and Procedures (Parks and Buildings) 
5. OPRYD’s Rental Application (Parks and Buildings) 



	
https://www.oaklandca.gov/topics/special-events	
	
	

	
	
	



Approved as to Form and Legality

City Attorney’s Office

OAKLAND CITY COUNCIL
8 8236RESOLUTION NO. C.M.S.

INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL PRESIDENT KAPLAN

RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO 
SUBMIT TO COUNCIL AMENDMENTS TO OAKLAND MUNICIPAL 
CHAPTER 9.52 AND OTHER ORDINANCES THAT ESTABLISH 
CRITERIA, PROCESSES AND REGULATIONS FOR APPROVING OR 
PERMITTING SPECIAL EVENTS ACTIVITIES, TO MOVE SUCH 
DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS FROM THE OAKLAND POLICE 
DEPARTMENT TO THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S OFFICE

WHEREAS, on June 1st, youth, city residents and students from Oakland Unified School 
District organized a peaceful protest and demonstration from Oakland Technical High School to 
Oakland City Hall Frank Ogawa Plaza; and

WHEREAS, around 7:40 pm Oakland Police Department fired tear gas, rubber bullets, 
and flash-bang grenades that injured protesters, many who were students and teenagers walking 
away from a peaceful demonstration in downtown; and

WHEREAS, several lawsuits have been filed showing Oakland Police Department 
knowingly broke their own court-ordered crowd control policies, which stipulated physical force 
should only be used as a last resort; and

WHEREAS, the total annual cost of the OPD unit for Special Events of the City of 
Oakland is approximately $500,000 per year, including personnel and overhead; and

WHEREAS, as of March 31, 2020, the Oakland Police Department was paid over $5.2 
Million in invoice fees for Special Events by payees such as the Oakland Raiders, the Oakland 
A’s, Blue Cross/Blue Shield and others holding events in Oakland; and

WHEREAS, according to the 2020 Mid-Cycle Budget report, from 2018-2019 OPD 
Overtime was $14,662,458 dollars over budget, and from 2019-2020 OPD Overtime was 
$16,937,304 dollars over budget; and



WHEREAS, the Oakland Police Department’s overtime deployments for the recent 
protests and demonstrations, which began after Memorial Day 2020. total $2,954,127; and

WHEREAS, other California cities do not use the police department for special events, 
for example, the City of San Francisco Outdoor Event Planning and Permitting for Special Events 
is managed by the San Francisco City’s Entertainment Commission; the City of San Jose Festivals 
and Large Events Special Park Use Permit is managed by the Department of Parks, Recreation & 
Neighborhood Services; the City of Pasadena’s Special Events for cultural and street festivals is 
managed by the Human Services & Recreation Department, while the City of Pasadena’s “large- 
scale” special events such as the “Tournament of Roses” and “Rock *n’ Roll” Half Marathon” is 
managed by the City of Pasadena’s Economic Development; The City of Los Angeles Special 
Events Permit is managed and coordinated by the Los Angeles Department of Transportation, 
Street LA (Street Services) Division; and

WHEREAS, for “Special Events,” the City of Oakland’s Municipal Code 9-52.030 require 
a permit be obtained for a special event or dance permit before holding or assisting in the 
conducting or carrying on of a special event or dance in any public place in the City of Oakland, 
this includes the “Special Events,” short-term Encroachment Permit TF-696-2 Application Form 
to be filed and submitted to OPD; and

WHEREAS, currently, the Oakland Police Department handles Special Event Permits, 
and deploys police to special events. The City of Oakland can save money, and make it easier to 
plan and organize events by converting this function into a civilian role; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED: That the City Council requests that the City Administrator or his or her 
designee submit to the Council amendments to Oakland Municipal Code Chapter 9.52 and other 
ordinances that establish criteria, processes and regulations for approving and permitting special 
events in the City of Oakland, to move such special events permitting functions from the Oakland 
Police Department to the City Administrator’s Office; and be it

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the City Council requests that the City Administrator take 
action to designate appropriate personnel, in alignment with Civil Service processes, who can 
appropriately handle street closures and related duties for parades, festivals, and similar events.
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PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE:
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